Divine Love Essentials



Lessons for Soul Awakening

Bill Frase

Table of Contents

How to Approach This Course	3
Introduction	4
A Brief History of Divine Love	5
The Creator	8
The Soul	10
The Natural Love Path	12
The Divine Love Path	14
Prayer for Divine Love	16
Soul Encrustations and Expiation	19
The Law of Attraction	22
A Quick Sketch of the Spirit Realms	24
The Principles of Communication and Rapport	27
Soul Perceptions and Spiritual Gifts	30
God's Plan for All	32
Epilogue	34
Sources	35
About the Author	36

How to Approach This Course

In this course I am synthesizing and distilling everything of value I have absorbed over the course of my spiritual journey thus far. This course contains those things that I feel are most essential for those who desire to walk the spiritual path of soul transformation through persistent soul longing for the Creator's Gift of Divine Love. Many important things have been omitted to focus upon the essential.

This course does not promote any institution, religion, authority, doctrine, dogma, or ritual. The purpose of this course is to support the development of our souls by receiving the Love of our Creator. As our souls grow in Love, we gain access to everything we truly need. I sincerely hope that this course will support your unique spiritual journey.

Do not simply accept any of the information presented herein as truth or fact. These words only point toward Truth. They are not the Truth itself. Truth can never be fully and completely expressed in words. Truth can only be perceived and known through the perceptions of the soul developed in Divine Love. Despite my best efforts, there are errors in this work. Please do your best to discern the truth for yourself through the development of your own soul in Divine Love.

Each lesson contains an invitation to participation. These are opportunities to seek God in prayer. These invitations are intended to be done more from within the heart and soul than from the mind. They are meant to help us grow in our experience of God's Divine Love.

Take anything troubling or challenging to your Creator in prayer for clarification and guidance. If anything does not resonate with your soul or support your experience of soul communion with God in Divine Love, let it go. Whatever helps you to experience the wonderment of God's Unconditional Divine Love and Absolute Acceptance, stick with that!

May we each experience the wondrous and abundant blessings of God's Divine Love on our journeys!

3

Introduction

I have written this book with the intention that it may support people in their journey of soul awakening. Understanding the information in this book is not necessary to experience the awakening of the soul in Divine Love. The awakening of the soul depends solely upon the practice of longing from one's soul for the power of Divine Love that can only be received from the Creator's Oversoul. If a soul engages in this practice on a frequent and intense basis, that soul will become awakened to its true nature and its true relationship to not only the Creator but to everything and everyone else in the universe.

While this is true, it is also true that for many of us (myself included) having some basic intellectual understanding of spiritual laws and realities can be very helpful in orienting oneself within a world that is very different from the world that humanity has fabricated out of its willful arrogance and ignorance of the Love of God.

There is no better investment one can make than those studies and practices that support the development and transformation of the soul in the Creator's Divine Love. The rewards and benefits of these efforts are beyond description, and they last for all eternity!

I am very grateful that you are here, dear reader! I am greatly indebted to all of the souls who have made this book possible. This work could not have been created without all of those souls who have been working so diligently and faithfully over the years to bring forward the truth of God's Divine Love to humanity. My soul explodes in gratitude to our Creator who is blessing us with an amazing story of Unconditional Love overcoming seemingly impossible odds and obstacles. We are living that story right now, and it is only just beginning...

Bill April 2020

A Brief History of Divine Love

The universe represents the continuous unfolding of God's creation. Human souls are created as finite images or likenesses of God's Infinite and All-Powerful Soul with some characteristics that are similar, though more limited than those belonging to the Deity.

The souls of the first parents of humanity were implanted within the first biological organisms on earth that could host souls. The first parents lived in perfect happiness and harmony with all of creation for some time.

Eventually the Creator made the first parents aware of the gift of Divine Love. Accepting this gift would allow a union in essence and substance with God that went far beyond their natural perfection and happiness. They refused to accept the gift of God's Love through the exercise of the gift of free will. The way that the first parents refused the gift of Divine Love was out of harmony with the laws of God's creation and caused an imbalance that cascaded into a spiritual and material descent from the first parents' original estate. This decision also shifted the conditions upon the Earth toward disharmony. Humanity and the Earth have not yet recovered. Every soul that has incarnated since the first parents' refusal of the gift of Divine Love has come into conditions of darkness and disharmony that have persisted to the present day.

While there may be much up for debate within the Jewish Bible, it does contain an important prophecy related to the fulfillment of the Creator's great hope for loving union of soul with God's precious and beloved children: the prophecy of the new heart. This prophecy promised that God would offer a blessing capable of transforming the human heart in such a way that all people could be empowered to live in harmony with God's Will.

Jesus was born over two thousand years ago. Jesus's soul was uniquely constituted so that it did not respond to the darkened conditions of the world like other souls. Over the course of his life he communed and conversed with God within his soul. He came to understand that in his own life the prophecy of the new heart was being fulfilled through the transformation of his soul from a purely natural creation into a new creation through his participation in the Power of God's Divine Love. He recognized that his purpose was to demonstrate and proclaim the fulfillment of the prophecy of the new heart so that humanity could come into harmony with God and all of creation as originally intended.

Jesus demonstrated and taught many the truth of God's Divine Love over the course of several years. Very few understood or applied his teachings given their preconceptions and

misunderstandings. After his death Jesus reappeared to his followers so that he could reiterate the truth of the availability of God's Divine Love and the way to receive it. After his return, his followers were much more open to his teachings on how to receive the gift of Divine Love through heartfelt prayer.

After Jesus departed from them a second time, his followers were deeply disappointed and troubled. They entered into prayer together as Jesus had taught them with great intensity and experienced what has been called the Pentecost. In that moment they experienced a mighty inflowing of God's Divine Love into their souls. This experience and their continued prayers for Divine Love led them to share the truth of God's Divine Love with others.

As the followers of Jesus entered the spirit realms, the truth of soul transformation through prayer for Divine Love was mostly lost to humanity. What remained of the Divine Love movements that were originally based upon the life, teachings and example of Jesus eventually coalesced into an institutional religion centered around Jesus's identity as the savior of the world through his sacrificial death.

It wasn't until the early twentieth century that Jesus was able to find suitable instruments and circumstances to effectively communicate the truth of Divine Love again. In 1914, a Washington, D.C., lawyer, James Edward Padgett, was heartbroken over the death of his wife. In his efforts to contact her through psychic mediums, he discovered that he had the gift of mediumship known as automatic writing - a psychic gift where spirits could influence his brain to write their words on paper. After communicating with his wife in this way, Mr. Padgett eventually came to understand that he was being called to help Jesus communicate the truth of God's Divine Love to humankind.

Mr. Padgett received thousands of messages over several years. Many of the messages contained information about Divine Love and many other spiritual truths that he was able to receive because of his own prayers for Divine Love. Mr. Padgett's friends and supporters eventually compiled and published many of these messages into a series of volumes after his transition to spirit.

In the 1950's and 1960s, Dr. Daniel G. Samuels, was called upon by Jesus to communicate more truths via automatic writing to build upon the foundational work of Mr. Padgett. From the 1970's to the present day, many thousands of Divine Love messages have been received through different human instruments using different forms of mediumship. The main focus of these published messages has been the importance of heartfelt prayer to receive the Creator's Divine Love for the transformation of the soul.

At this time, God's Plan for the Salvation of Humankind and the Healing of the Earth has reached a critical stage. Those who walk in the Way of Divine Love and who seek to live in harmony with natural and spiritual law will receive opportunities to assist with this transformation of our world from darkness and violence to light and harmony.

An Invitation to Participation

- In what ways have I allowed my experiences to strengthen and empower me?
- At what times and in what ways over the course of my life have I been guided, inspired, protected and loved?
- What would I love to know for sure?
- What would God love for me to know for sure?

The Creator

The Creator is Infinite Soul with all of the attributes that make the Creator the Ultimate Reality. God's qualities include (but are not limited to) such things as omniscience, omnipotence, incorruptibility, immortality, self-existence and a host of other characteristics that are completely incomprehensible to the mind.

While the Creator has many divine qualities and a divine character that surpasses the bounds of our understanding, for the purposes of this study, I would like to focus on just a few characteristics that are most helpful for those seeking to develop their souls in Divine Love.

Infinite: The Creator is infinite without any limits upon Divine Beingness.

Uncreated/Immortal: The Creator exists outside of time and space. God is without beginning or end. God is immortal by nature and therefore not subject to death, diminishment or dissolution in any way at any point in all of eternity. The Creator is the Self-Existing Reality upon which all other realities ultimately depend for their continuation, regardless of their relative harmony or lack thereof.

Creative/Expressive: God is the creative power behind All Life. God expresses the truth of God's being through the grandeur and beauty of creation, the creation of souls in God's image, and the outpouring of Divine Love upon those souls.

All-Loving: A critical aspect of God's essential nature is infinite Divine Love. All words pale in comparison to the power, greatness and gentleness of the Creator's Divine Love. Divine Love is the most powerful energy in all of creation with the ability to transform the created souls who desire it into the very Uncreated Essence of Divinity.

Greatly Desirous/Passionate: The Creator has a boundless desire beyond all human comprehension to express itself and to be experienced by those souls made in the Great Oversoul's image and likeness. God greatly desires union in Divine Love with each and every precious soul.

These words do not capture or encapsulate the reality of the Creator in any way, they only point toward some aspects of Divine Beingness that may be helpful in understanding some of the ideas presented in later lessons.

- What images of the Creator have I held over the course of my life?
- How have those images changed and evolved?
- What human limitations, characteristics and words have I projected onto God?
- Have I allowed myself to experience the Unconditional Love and Absolute Acceptance of God?
- Am I open to the possibility that God simply desires to love and heal me and has no desire to judge, condemn or punish me?
- Do I truly desire to experience, to know, to be at-one with my Heavenly Parent?
- How does it feel to know that God is besotted with me, that my Creator absolutely adores me more than I can comprehend?

The Soul

The soul is a spiritual creation made in the invisible likeness and image of the Creator. Each soul is a unique creation and has an existence prior to its incarnation. At the moment of incarnation, the soul becomes uniquely individualized through its implantation into a biological body. This individualization is accomplished regardless of how long the soul resides within its biological body, whether it be for the briefest moment or for many cycles of time as they occur within the flow of eternity.

The soul is created perfect by God and is meant to experience life in all of its goodness and fullness. The soul is endowed with a love that is similar to the Love of the Creator, yet different in its nature. Unlike the uncreated Divine Love of God, the soul is imbued with a created love that will be referred to as "natural love."

Every soul has the gift of free will with the ability to make decisions for itself independent of external compulsion. There is nothing that can take away a soul's ability to freely choose its responses to the conditions and circumstances it encounters. It is what makes personal responsibility possible. Without free will everyone would be either a hapless victim or a pre-programmed robot. This freedom of the will is the birthright of every soul. While every soul experiences existence in a unique way and often has no control over the circumstances and situations that it encounters, the soul's responses to those experiences are completely unconstrained by external factors.

The soul, being made in the likeness of the Creator, also has other capabilities that are part of its essential nature - the ability to perceive, to create and to express itself. The soul is also able to receive, share and express love in ways that are unique to each and every soul. The soul also has implanted within it a desire for union with the Creator that is a reflection of God's great desire for union with the soul.

The soul is entirely spiritual in nature. It is located in the torso. The entryway to the soul is the spiritual heart center. If you have any challenges connecting with your soul, focusing on your heart may lead you into experiencing the reality of your soul.

- How does it feel to know that my true essence is spiritual in nature not mental or physical?
- What does it mean that my soul is made in the image of God's Soul?
- What does my soul desire to give, to share, to be?
- What do I know for sure, not in my mind but in my heart, in my soul?
- What does my soul's desire for union with God look like? Feel like? Sound like?

The Natural Love Path

There are two basic spiritual paths that are available to each soul. This lesson's focus is upon the "Natural Love Path" which leads to the restoration of the perfect or purified soul.

Those who walk the natural love path seek the purification of their souls leading to their original condition of perfection. Souls who decide to take this path recognize that they have taken on energetic patterns that are out of harmony with natural and spiritual law. These patterns become attached to the soul through the process of incarnation into the dark conditions prevalent upon the Earth and through the soul's freely chosen responses to those conditions and the circumstances that it has encountered over the course of its life.

Souls that choose the natural love path seek to engage in practices and disciplines that will help them to renounce those conditions that are not in harmony with the laws of creation. They will engage in a process of soul cleansing through the exercise of their wills in ways that are meant to change their being and doing from ways that are out of harmony toward ways that are in harmony with the laws of creation.

Those who take this path work to remove those things that they have allowed to become entangled with their true natures as pure and perfect souls made in the image and likeness of the Creator. The souls who choose this path work to be healed and cleansed of everything that taints their original perfectly-created nature. The ultimate goal of this path is the restoration of the inherent goodness and perfection of the individuated soul. The natural love path can be considered to be a path of renunciation, refinement, purification, healing and cleansing.

Those souls that seek help with this process of releasing everything that is out of harmony with their created nature will receive help in many different forms. Those who engage in this process will ultimately achieve spiritual perfection and all of the happiness and blessings that flow from a spiritual condition that is completely in harmony with the laws of God's creation. The soul may be purified either on Earth or in the realms of spirit. Given the spiritual conditions upon the Earth at this time, most souls ultimately achieve perfection in the realms of spirit and not while they live upon on Earth.

Once a soul achieves natural perfection, its spiritual progress stops. The only kind of development available to the perfected soul is through the acquisition of more information. Many of these perfect souls experience great satisfaction in their intellectual pursuits.

- What burdens am I carrying that are not truly a part of who I am?
- What would it take for me to remove the things I carry that are out of harmony with love and truth?
- What benefits do I receive from carrying my burdens and/or seeking to impose them upon others?
- What are my favorite stories that I tell myself about who I am, about the world, about others that justify the ways I prefer to think about myself?
- What images of myself do I desire for others to accept? A clue to this is whenever I
 become anxious or upset by how anyone else may respond or has responded to me.
- In what ways is the identity I have assumed out of harmony with the truth of my core being?
- How would I feel, be, think and act if my soul were pure and pristine?

The Divine Love Path

The other spiritual path available to every soul is the "Divine Love Path." This path differs in significant ways from the natural love path. Unlike the natural love path, souls upon the Divine Love Path seek something beyond the purification of their soul.

Souls upon the divine path desire soul communion through participation in the Essence of the Creator. This is achieved through the deepest expressions of the soul for union with God. The moment a soul expresses this desire, the Creator responds by implanting Divine Love within that soul according to the soul's desire.

Love and desire are essential aspects of the Creator's Soul. It has been mentioned how God desires greatly to express Divine Love and desires union with the souls of God's children. The created soul, being made in the image and likeness of God's Oversoul, is the special object of God's Love and Care.

God has created each soul with a deep desire for union with God. Each soul is invited by God to receive Divine Love. This gift of Love is only bestowed upon those souls that seek it through the free exercise of their wills. It is not forced upon any soul. Otherwise it would not be a gift.

Another difference between the Divine Love Path and the natural love path is the ultimate destiny of the soul. Where the natural soul seeks and achieves its original condition of perfection, the soul that seeks Divine Love achieves a transformation or rebirth from its natural state into a being in possession of the very Essence of Divinity. The transformational process eventually leads to the supplantation of the natural energies of the soul with the uncreated essence of God's Divine Love.

Unlike those souls who return to their original condition of perfection, the transformed soul has the potential for continuous and unending progress into realms of light and love that are far beyond what the purified soul may experience. The limitations of intellectual progress that belong to the purified soul are removed from the soul transformed by Divine Love. This new creation in Divine Love knows ever-expanding joy, bliss and knowledge that are unknown to a soul who has achieved the goal of natural perfection. Unlike souls that have achieved natural perfection, these souls also experience the conscious awareness of their immortality since their souls are entirely composed of the Uncreated Essence of God.

- In what ways have I allowed my mind and body to redirect my soul's desire for union with God?
- What things, people, experiences, behaviors have I been seeking instead of seeking union with the Source of my being?
- What are the distractions and addictions that I have been allowing to override my soul's desire for union with God?
- At what times and in what ways over the course of my life can I see that I have been guided, protected, loved and inspired toward experiencing God's Divine Love?
- Have there been times in my life when my soul desired God's Love even though my mind may not have been aware of it at the time?
- What wounds, pains, insecurities and defense mechanisms would benefit from healing in the gentle power of Divine Love?
- Am I willing to allow God's Love to heal and transmute everything within me to love and light?
- What would it be like to know for certain that my soul will live forever?

Prayer for Divine Love

Note: If the word "soul" is not helpful to you at any point in this lesson, please feel free to replace it with "heart." The heart is not the soul, but it is the doorway to the soul. It may help you to pray from your heart for Divine Love.

There is only one practice that is essential to the Divine Love Path - prayer for Divine Love. Prayer for Divine Love is the only way to experience the inflowing of the Essence of God into the soul.

Prayer for Divine Love is uniquely expressed and experienced by each soul. Each soul's expressions and experiences in prayer will be different. Prayer for Divine Love is simply the expression of the soul's desire for union with The Source of Life. There is nothing in all of creation that can come between the soul that sincerely seeks union with God in Love and God's great desire to implant the Divine Essence within that desirous soul. Nothing.

Prayer for Divine Love is about expressing the true yearning of the soul for God. It is desiring union with God from the very depths of the soul. This unification process between the soul and the Creator is invoked through the expression of the soul's desire for union. The Creator's great desire for union with the beloved soul responds instantly with Divine Love.

The reception of Divine Love into the soul depends upon three primary prayer factors: frequency, fervency and duration. The more frequently the soul deeply desires God's Love, the more often it is received. The greater the fervency in prayer, the more Divine Love the soul receives in that moment. When a soul increases the frequency and fervency of prayer for Divine Love, the soul's journey toward at-onement with God is accelerated and intensified. The duration of prayers for Divine Love can vary greatly. There may be very brief prayers of deep soul desire that cause the inflowing of Divine Love. Prayer for Divine Love can also be practiced for much longer periods of time as well. Prayers of any duration are effective as long as the soul's deep desire for union with God is expressed.

Experiment and discover those ways of prayer for Divine Love that help you to experience soul communion with God. Prayer for Divine Love is all about the longings of the soul. It does not depend upon your thoughts or what you are doing in the moment. It may be affected by your thoughts and other circumstances and conditions, but it does not depend upon them. There are many souls who distract and discourage themselves, trying to clear their minds of all thoughts or trying to achieve some other objective that is not needed to

16

experience God's Divine Love through the yearnings of the soul. There are no prerequisites to receiving Divine Love except the simple yet profound desire to receive it!

Whatever else may be happening in any given moment, simply focus your soul's desires in the ways that help you to desire union with God in Love. Trust that the development of your soul in Love will help you to receive further guidance on those practices and disciplines that will help all aspects of yourself to come into harmony with your soul's desire. Do your best not to allow yourself to be distracted by the non-essential when The Essential is so readily available for the asking.

The longing of the soul for the Creator may be expressed regardless of situation or circumstance. It is possible to receive Divine Love in prayer even when you are experiencing thoughts or engaged in different activities. Many people are under the impression that prayer for Divine Love requires stillness and silence. While many may find these practices supportive of their prayer practice, it may not necessarily be the case since each soul is unique. Over time, seek to develop your ability to pray for Divine Love under any and all circumstances. It is good to be prepared for anything. We never know when and where our prayers may be needed.

Listen to your soul for whatever may be most supportive of your efforts to commune with God in prayer. Whatever you do in addition to expressing the longings of your soul that helps you to experience God's Love, do those things. Just do not depend upon them. Some souls benefit from developing a regular prayer schedule or routine. Some souls find their prayers enhanced by having a special or sacred place to pray. Some souls find that certain physical positions or practices support the expression of their soul desires. Use those circumstances that support your spiritual journey but do not become attached to them. Over time you will find that it is possible to pray for Divine Love under many different circumstances.

God greatly anticipates the moment when our souls desire to be blessed with this Holy Substance. Our Creator awaits the longings of our souls with a depth of desire that is beyond imagination. God and the angels of Divine Love do everything possible (without violating our free wills) to help us in the expressions of our deepest desire. No one who sincerely seeks Divine Love from their soul is ever abandoned or alone. The true desire of the soul is like a powerful beacon causing the angels to rush in. God is present in that very moment. Just because we may not be able to sense the presence of angels or our Heavenly Parent in any given moment, does not mean that they are not present with us. Persist in the expression of your soul's deepest desire, and you will be showered with eternal treasure beyond measure. When we pray from our souls, God always responds.

These responses are the result of spiritual law. When soul calls to Soul, the response is immediate and guaranteed whether we know it or not. Pray. Trust. Receive. Enjoy!

An Invitation to Participation

- What would help me to express my soul's desire for union with God in Love right now?
- Would it be helpful to develop a safe or sacred place to pray for God's Love?
- Would it be helpful to develop a schedule or routine to pray for God's Love?
- How could it be possible that the most helpful thing I can do for everyone in my life is to seek the transformation of my soul according to the power of God's Divine Love?
- Am I willing to persist in prayer for God's Love even though it may not be obvious that I am receiving it at any given moment?
- What is my greatest healing need? Am I willing to take the time and make the effort to ask and trust God to heal that wound with Divine Love?
- Am I willing to trust that God desires to set me free from everything that burdens me?

Soul Encrustations and Expiation

As soon as a soul incarnates into this world, it is confronted by energetic conditions of spiritual darkness created by humanity. Each soul responds to this energetic assault in its own ways. These responses often lead to the formation of energetic patterns around the soul that are meant to help it function in these conditions of darkness, fear and violence. We will refer to these energetic responses by the soul to the darkened conditions it faces as soul encrustations.

Soul encrustations can be thought of as walls that are built around the soul to protect it. They can also be thought of as defense systems or mechanisms that are developed to offer protection to the soul from the continuous energetic assault upon its being by the conditions that are prevalent upon the Earth at this time.

Just as a person becomes concealed and weighed down when they put on layers of clothing or suits of armor, so the true nature of the soul is hidden and burdened by soul encrustations. The soul is liberated to the extent that these layers are healed and removed.

As has already been discussed, there are two ways of removing soul encrustations. In the natural love path, the soul recognizes the need to remove these soul encrustations and exercises the will in such a way as to remove them.

In the Divine Love Path, a soul recognizes that it has these conditions that are affecting the quality of its existence. In response to this recognition, the soul cries out to God for the healing and removal of these energetic patterns with a desire for the very substance and nature of God, Divine Love.

Divine Love is the most powerful and gentle of energies. It enters the soul according to the soul's desire and interacts with these darkened conditions. Given its great power and gentleness, it causes the soul's encrustations to loosen and ultimately to be removed and dissolved in the light of Divine Love. Once Divine Love enters the soul, it cannot be diminished or displaced.

Expiation refers to the removal of that which is out of harmony within the soul. Sometimes soul encrustations are expiated without the mind and body having any conscious awareness of the healing that has occurred. Expiation also refers to our conscious experiences of the healing and releasing of soul encrustations.

The expiation process can involve very powerful emotions that come up as encrustations are being released from the soul. Many people are surprised that their prayers for Divine Love can bring up pain and difficulty. Thankfully these times tend to be short-lived and are always followed by feelings of greater lightness, freedom, peace and upliftment as another piece of armor is healed and released.

Encrustations cannot perpetually coexist with Divine Love in the soul. Its power is such that it will ultimately lead the soul to experience the healing and removal of everything that is out of harmony with Divine Love.

The expiation process that occurs for those souls who receive Divine Love can involve many emotional highs and lows or what may be thought of as mood swings. These changes of feeling happen as the soul experiences the upliftment of the power of Divine Love and the subsequent release of soul encrustments that also have connections to the mind and the body as well.

Without the understanding of the expiation process, many people assume that their prayers for Divine Love are not effective because of the welling up of these challenging thoughts and emotions. Nothing could be further from the truth. The more one prays for Divine Love, the more encrustations will be released from the soul. These emotional highs and lows or pendulum swings are a completely normal part of the healing process and nothing to fear.

Many people's minds create stories of self-recrimination and/or blame to explain the powerful emotions that arise during the expiation process. Please do your best to not accept the stories your mind tells you about what is happening. Doing this will only prolong the expiation process and delay healing. Do your best to pray your way through your expiations. Ask for God for help and you will receive it!

There are powerful spiritual forces that assist us with the expiation process. God and the angels of Divine Love ensure that the person undergoing expiation will not become overly unbalanced by the changes happening due to the reception of Divine Love. You can trust the process. Do your best not to cling to that which is leaving your being out of fear but allow it to be released in faith and trust. Continue to pray and trust in the healing and transformation of your soul in the gentle power of God's Divine Love.

- What patterns or tendencies have I noticed that are not helpful or loving?
- Am I willing to continue to pray even as my prayers appear to be making me more sensitive, emotional and upset?
- Am I willing to keep praying through the highs and lows of my life, trusting that my prayers are actually helping and not making things worse?

The Law of Attraction

The Law of Attraction is actually involved in much of what has already been discussed. It is one of the most powerful and important spiritual laws to understand if one desires to orient oneself to spiritual realities on Earth and in the vast realms of spirit.

The Law of Attraction is simple in principle, but its applications are powerful and complex in their actual workings. The Law of Attraction states that the soul attracts that which is in harmony with its true condition.

It is often challenging for souls on Earth at this time to perceive the true workings of the law of attraction because people often confuse or equate material or intellectual circumstances with spiritual blessings. For example, there are souls in great darkness who hold positions of power, fame, wealth and authority in the world that humanity has invented. There are also souls who are bright with love who live in poverty and obscurity. There are souls with brilliant minds whose souls are in deep darkness while there are souls with very simple minds who radiate great light.

The Law of Attraction can be seen at work throughout all of human history. It can be seen at play at every scale and in every aspect of human existence both on Earth and in the realms of spirit.

Understanding this law is important for one is to understand the nature of existence within the realms of spirit. Unlike the apparent lack of harmony that often occurs with regard to material circumstances, intellectual developments and spiritual realities on Earth, in the realms of spirit, this law operates with a precision that is undeniable to those who are aware of it.

On Earth, the Law of Attraction determines to a great extent which spiritual forces and entities are operating in your life. When people exercise their wills in ways that are opposed to the laws of creation, spirits who are interested in opposing those same laws in similar ways will be attracted to those people and will reinforce their efforts, usually without any awareness on the part of those being influenced. Whenever we indulge in soul-darkening intentions, thoughts and actions, we can be assured that we are attracting dark spirits who resonate with our desires.

Some of the most important implications of the Law of Attraction for us on Earth have to do with the importance of engaging in spiritual disciplines that support the development of our

souls and the elevation of our thoughts and feelings in the direction of truth, love, beauty and goodness. When we do these things we attract positive spiritual influences to support us in the realization of our aspirations. Whenever we choose to seek God's Love, we attract the very presence of God, bright spirits and angels of Divine Love who desire to support us in our efforts and expressions.

Most people on Earth have no awareness of the effects and consequences of choosing to live out of harmony with the laws of creation. Most have no awareness of the spiritual entities and forces that they are inviting into their lives. The awareness of the Law of Attraction can help us to shift our choices toward love, light and harmony.

God's Love is the greatest power in the universe. Whenever a soul seeks it, that soul is uplifted beyond the powers of the dark spiritual forces that have contact with the Earth. The more we seek the light of God's Love, the less influence the forces of darkness will have upon our spiritual condition and the more empowered we will be to bring light and love to the world.

An Invitation to Participation

- What are the implications of the Law of Attraction for my own life?
- How may my experiences of life be a reflection of my soul condition?
- Am I open to the possibility that my experience of life may change based upon the condition of my soul?
- Would I like to attract higher spiritual forces and entities into my life?

A Quick Sketch of the Spirit Realms

Most people today are not aware of the basic structure and nature of the realms of spirit that are occupied by those souls who no longer inhabit biological bodies. This lesson will only give the most rudimentary description of the spiritual and heavenly realms.

The spiritual realms are composed of numerous levels that perfectly reflect the spiritual conditions of the souls that reside in those regions. The Law of Attraction works with great precision in the realms of spirit. All of the spheres of the realms of spirit contain graduated planes that correspond very closely to the spiritual conditions of the souls who are required to inhabit these regions according to the Law of Attraction. In the spirit realms, souls of similar spiritual conditions must reside with other souls of similar soul condition and live in environments that match and reflect the condition of those souls. Souls have the ability to visit all of the regions that are below their plane of residence, but they cannot reside in spheres and planes where souls of higher soul condition live.

The lowest and darkest regions of the afterlife are places of great negativity and resistance to life. The environments in these planes are truly dismal, depressing and distressing. All of the sights, smells, and sounds in these planes reflect the condition of the souls who reside in these awful places. These planes are the abode of souls whose conditions are the most out of harmony with the laws of God's creation. Eventually these dark planes will be emptied and cease to exist when there are no more souls choosing to create such conditions because they have moved into higher spheres of greater light.

Above these dark planes are the gray Earth planes where souls of a similar condition to many souls living upon the earth reside. Some of the souls in these realms have left their physical bodies without any awareness that they have died. Most of the souls in the Earth planes have little or no interest in making spiritual progress. Many of the spirits in these realms are still very concerned with their earthly activities, interests, affairs, distractions and addictions. They are not very different from many people living upon the Earth at this time who are enthralled by their desires for things they consider to be of value in the world that humanity has invented out of its arrogance and ignorance.

Above the earth planes are the spheres that represent different levels of purification or soul transformation with lower numbered spheres reflecting relatively lower levels of soul development or purification and higher numbered spheres representing relatively greater soul purity or development. As a soul progresses, it moves up through these spheres

brightening in appearance and beauty while experiencing environments that reflect its improving spiritual condition.

The numbering of the spheres also reveals differences between those souls who follow the natural love path or the Divine Love path. The even-numbered spheres (second, fourth, and sixth) are those places where spirits following the natural love path tend to spend more time on their journeys. The spirits who reside within these spheres represent those who have chosen the path toward the purification of their souls through the natural love path of renunciation through the exercise of their wills to remove those energies that are out of harmony with their created natures. The odd numbered spheres (third, fifth, and seventh) represent increasing levels of spiritual development according to the reception of God's Divine Love into the soul. The souls who spend more time in these spheres seek the transformation of their souls through the acquisition of Divine Love.

Spirits on the natural Love path tend to pass very quickly through the third and fifth spheres on their way to natural perfection. Spirits on the Divine Love path tend to pass through the second, fourth, and sixth spheres quite quickly on their way to the third, fifth and seventh spheres. One can think of the even-numbered spheres as being the touchstones or residences of spirits on the natural love path and the odd-numbered spheres as being the abodes or touchstones for those souls on the Divine Love Path that leads to the home of redeemed souls in the Celestial Heavens.

The highest plane of the sixth sphere is where those spirits who have returned to their natural purity of soul reside in great happiness and pursue the development of their intellects. The spheres above the seventh sphere are the Celestial Heavens where all of the souls who have experienced the complete transformation from a natural being into a divine soul reside. The Celestial Heavens have an unlimited number of spheres since souls on the Divine Love path have the opportunity to receive more and more Divine Love for all eternity.

- Are there any ideas of the afterlife that would be helpful for me to consider or release at this time?
- Would I like to make spiritual progress on Earth before continuing my progress in the spirit realms?
- How does a changed perspective on the realms of spirit inform my decisions in this life?
- What more would I love to know about the realms of spirit?

The Principles of Communication and Rapport

The principles of communication and rapport are important to understand if we want to gain insight into the nature of spirit influence and communication. Having a basic understanding of these principles is also important for those who desire to understand the great diversity and contradictions in much of the information that has come to the Earth from the realms of spirit.

The Law of Attraction ensures that souls of like condition are attracted to souls and environments of like condition. Since the Earth contains a great variety of spiritual conditions, it is possible for spirits from throughout the spirit realms to visit the earth and communicate with human beings.

All souls on Earth have some ability to communicate with God and souls in the spirit realms. The clarity of the communications depends upon a wide variety of factors with the most important factor being the similarity of the souls in their spiritual conditions.

There have been many people over the millennia who have had the ability to receive communications from the spirit realms. The main issue affecting the quality of the information received in those communications has been the spiritual development of the medium or channel and the soul condition of the communicating spirit.

If a medium harmonizes with earth plane spirits, then the only information that person can receive is the quality of information available to earth plane spirits which is not of a higher nature than the quality of information typically available to human beings on Earth. This information also tends to be sent and received via thought transference from the mind of the spirit to the mind of the instrument without the soul's involvement.

If a channel has a more purified soul through the renunciation of evil tendencies, then that instrument may be able to receive messages from spirits who occupy higher spheres. Again much of the information will be communicated through the mind without much involvement by the soul. But if the channel's spiritual condition corresponds to the conditions present in the second sphere for example, the medium will not be able to clearly receive communications from spirits who reside in spheres above the second without some omission, error and distortion in the transmission.

The spirits in all of the different spheres have their own perspectives much like people do on earth. These spirits who reside in spheres below the seventh sphere all retain certain

amounts of error within themselves, let alone the fact that the medium carries error as well. So the quality of these communications can vary widely given the error inherent in the sources of information and the error within the medium's soul and mind and the strength of the mediumistic gifts involved.

The only way to receive the highest spiritual truths is for a soul to be sufficiently developed in Divine Love in order to make a strong enough rapport with the Creator and/or the angels of Divine Love to receive and communicate their messages with any degree of clarity.

Mediums can be likened to receivers that have their own limitations upon their ability to receive different kinds of signals from spirit. The source of the signals (God, spirits or angels) vary greatly in the quality of the information they can communicate. While God and the angels' transmissions are pure and powerful, what comes through the medium is dependent upon the limitations of the medium. If a medium is receiving messages from souls that do not reside in the Celestial Heavens, then there is always going to be some amount of error or lack of knowledge on the part of the communicating spirit.

There are many other factors that can affect the reception of transmissions from the realms of spirit including the physical condition of the medium, the energetic conditions of the Earth, the desire and willingness of the medium, the medium's own ideas and biases and a host of other complicating factors.

This entire lesson begs the question, how do we know what communications are more of truth and which are more of error? The only way to know the relative truth or error of any communication is to have a soul sufficiently developed in Divine Love to discern the quality of the communication. If we want to know the truth of anything, the only way to know it with certainty is to have our souls developed in Divine Love to such an extent that our souls can differentiate between truth and error.

- How do I feel about the persistent influence of spirits in my life and the lives of others?
- Am I open to the possibility that it is not a matter of whether I am influenced by spirits or not, but rather what kinds of spirits are influencing me based upon the condition of my soul and my habits of thought and feeling?
- When have I experienced some awareness of the communication and influence of spirits in my life? In other people's lives?
- Can I perceive that different kinds and qualities of transmissions and influence are dependent upon the spiritual conditions of all who are involved?
- Will I choose to discern the spiritual condition of the sources that influence my life and process those influences according to how well they express love, truth, beauty and goodness?

Soul Perceptions and Spiritual Gifts

As the soul develops in Divine Love, its soul perceptions and spiritual gifts grow and expand. It is helpful to have an understanding of some of the signposts of this growth and development as we seek to become more faithful instruments of God in Love.

Soul perceptions are different from psychic gifts. There are many people with powerful natural psychic gifts that have nothing to do with soul development. Psychic gifts may become empowered and expanded by soul development in Divine Love.

Soul perceptions include the knowings and awarenesses of the soul of truths and realities. Soul perceptions are to intellectual understanding as self-knowledge is to book learning.

One of the challenges with soul perceptions is that they can be influenced or affected by the error and biases as the material mind works to process them. This will be the case until the mind of the soul has completely supplanted the material mind, which happens in the final stage of the soul's transformation from a natural being into a divine being.

Spiritual Gifts are those numerous and diverse faculties and potentials that exist within each and every soul that await activation through sufficient participation in the Essence of Divine Love. Each soul has a unique constellation of diverse spiritual gifts unlike any other. These gifts can be related to many things including diverse gifts of mediumship, communication and transmission, healing, manifestations, creativity and a great host of other possibilities.

Soul perceptions and spiritual gifts are not received or developed through the mind or the body, although they may affect the operations of the mind and body. They are expressions of soul development in Divine Love. As the soul develops through the power of Divine Love, soul perceptions expand to reveal more and greater aspects of truth and reality, including the reality of God. Soul perceptions help the soul to perceive more of reality more accurately and effectively. Spiritual Gifts are those aspects of the soul that grow and develop in response to prayers for Divine Love that become the means of a soul's service in the world and the spirit realms. Spiritual Gifts help the soul to uniquely express God's Divine Love in service.

One of the key components of both soul perceptions and spiritual gifts is joy. In the development of these aspects of the soul, great joy results from perceiving more truth and reality and from the soul's ability to express the power of Divine Love according to its unique spiritual gifts.

One way to think about the relationship between these two aspects of the soul is to consider soul perceptions as guiding the exercise of our spiritual gifts in service.

An Invitation to Participation

- When I was a child, what was I attracted to? What did I fantasize or daydream about? What did I know as a child that I may have forgotten?
- What am I deeply passionate about?
- What do I know now that I didn't know before I started praying for Divine Love?
- As I continue to pray for Divine Love, what am I feeling nudged or prompted to do?
- Am I willing to trust the insights and guidance I receive during my prayers for Divine Love?
- Am I open to the possibility that there are unrealzied potentials within my soul that may blossom and grow in the power of Divine Love?

God's Plan for All

The Earth is undergoing rapid and dramatic changes at this time. These changes are being driven by the heavy energetic burden carried by the Earth of 7.5 billion people living out of harmony with natural and spiritual law and by the Creator's outpouring of powerful energies upon humanity and the Earth at this time.

God's Plan for All refers to the current unfolding of these powerful forces that are bringing great change to the Earth and to humankind. God is using every opportunity available to bring humanity into greater alignment with love, light and truth.

Until humanity comes into greater harmony with spiritual and natural law, these waves of change will persist and intensify in the days ahead. Those souls who fearfully try to cling to that which is passing away will have a very difficult time making the adjustments needed to take advantage of the great waves of change that are coming.

Those souls who seek to either live in harmony with natural and spiritual law and/or who seek the transformation of their souls in Divine Love, will be in a much better position to receive and act upon the guidance available in order to ride the waves of change in joy and with purpose. Those who seek to live in harmony with love and light will help to guide and uplift others through the coming changes and into a new world that is quite different from the one that humanity has built out of ignorance and defiance of the laws of creation.

I have included this final lesson because I feel it is important for me to share the truth of God's Divine Love and the way to receive it through heartfelt prayer so that I can help as many people as possible to play a constructive role in the coming changes. I invite you to be one of those souls who becomes a steadfast anchor in the tumult instead of being tossed to and fro by the currents of change.

The choice is yours.

I implore you to build your life upon the rock solid foundation of Divine Love. God will respond immediately to the prayers of every single soul that seeks Divine Love. Every. Single. Time. Amen.

- What am I feeling called to do, to contribute, to give, to share at this time?
- How am I carrying forward the best of what I have received?
- How may my story be connected with the larger story of creation and God's Plan?
- What does my soul desire to give, to share, to be?
- Am I willing to choose to receive Divine Love from God so that I may share and give to others out of that great reservoir of spiritual abundance?

Epilogue

I hope that this book has provided some clarity regarding spiritual realities. I also hope that the information presented will have the effect of encouraging you to seek God's Divine Love for the transformation of your soul and the multitude of blessings that flow from that process of being reborn into God's New World.

One of the reasons I wrote this book is that while I very much look forward to a wonderful afterlife, my focus at this time is working toward the realization of God's Plan for All. While the Earth releases itself from those conditions of darkness and disharmony that humanity has forced upon her, God is also working with all souls who desire to help bring spiritual light and love into this world at this time. God is working closely with those souls who desire to assist in this transformation of our world from a place of darkness and disharmony into a planet of harmony, light, and goodness.

I pray that you will take up the task of seeking the transformation of your soul in God's Divine Love and the larger cause of working in harmony with God's Plan for All. You are needed more than you know!

May our beloved Creator saturate and permeate your soul with the Living Waters of Divine Love for the renewal of your life and our planet. Amen.

Sources

True Gospel Revealed Anew by Jesus, Volumes I-IV
76 Sermons on the Old Testament of the Bible
New Testament Revelations
New-birth.net
Divinelove.org



About the Author

Bill Frase walks the Divine Love Path. He is the author of <u>wakeupcallforthesoul.com</u>. He is the founder of the Pittsburgh Circle of Light. He is drawing souls to the Creator's Heart of Unconditional Love and Absolute Acceptance at this critical time in human history as great waves of change continue to transform life on Earth.

He lives with his partner and son in southwestern Pennsylvania, USA. He has worked in a variety of fields over the years ranging from the performing arts to epidemiological research. In his day job, he is the senior manager of the business services initiative for a disability services non-profit.

Bill offers the following assistance:

- Living Your Soul's Purpose
- Divine Love Path Mentoring/Coaching
- Dream/Life Interpretation
- Circle of Light Development
- Harmonizing the Divine Love Path and Christianity
- Healing

For more information, contact Bill at: https://wakeupcallforthesoul.com/contact/contact-form/